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Located in the historic town of Clarendon, Arkansas, the Monroe County
Courthouse was constructed in 1911. It was designed by architect Charles
L. Thompson of Little Rock, who designed many of the finest structures in
Arkansas. Exhibiting a classical influence the brick structure follows
symmetrical lines. The Monroe County Courthouse was constructed under the
supervision of W. A. Prather and Company of Memphis, Tennessee, for
$118,000.

The rectangular-shaped structure is marked by four octagonal towers, one
on each corner of the building. These corner towers are topped with
cornical-shaped tile roofs. The truncated hip roof of the structure is
also composed of tile and is marked by regularly spaced chimneys and
dormers on all four elevations. All windows are double-hung multi-lite
and feature cast-stone lugsills and keystones. Entries on the east and
west elevations feature heavy oak-paneled double doors surrounded by
sidelites and transom with triangular-shaped lites.

The facade (north elevation) is majestically marked by a large center
tower which features clocks on all four elevations. Three, tall, slender
windows, one above the other, are located on each elevation along with a
band of cast stone beneath the clocks. The base of the classic-styled
belfry is supported by paired decorative brackets. The belfry features
four arched openings each flanked by small Doric-capital columns. The
hip roof of the belfry is supported by brackets.

A classic portico of cast-stone blocks marks the facade entry. Doric-
capital columns flank either side of the entrance to the portico. Above
the portico entrance is an elliptical-shaped arch with returns. In the
center of the arch is an elaborate crest.

Interiors of the Monroe County Courthouse are exceptionally elaborate in
the usage of marble and tile. The lobby features marble wainscotting

and colorfully patterned ceramic tile floors. Marble pilasters and columns
are a frequent feature of the rich interior. Original light fixtures
remain in most parts of the building.

Of special interest is the courtroom in the Monroe County Courthouse, located
on the second floor. The original oak furniture remains in perfect condi-
tion in the courtroom. In the center of the courtroom ceiling is a large
dome skylite which contains panels of richly colored stained glass.

The interiors have been minimally altered to accommodate the need for office
space. No alterations have occurred to the exterior.

This architecturally interesting structure, designed by one of Arkansas'
leading architects, remains in excellent condition. Resting on the court-

house square, the Monroe County Courthouse is a prominent landmark in the
county.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The largest number of architecturally significant public buildings in Arkansas
are the courthouses scattered over the state's seventy-five counties. A
structural :symbol of American Government, the county courthouse serves as the
center of local political activity. Often the largest and most costly build-
ing in the county, the courthouse is almost always a source.of pride to the
citizens who financed and make use of its facilities.

Monroe, the twenty-second county, was created on November 2, 1829. It was
formed out of Phillips and Arkansas Counties and named for President James
Monroe. The temporary seat of justice was directed to be at the house of
Thomas Maddox, and in January, 1830, an election was held to select commis-
sioners who would choose a site for a courthouse. The commissioners selected
a site on the farm of Joseph Jacobs and named it Lawrenceville. The county
seat remained there until the spring of 1856 when, by vote of the people, the
center of government was changed to Clarendon on the White River. The removal
order on the county records was in October, 1837.

The present Monroe County Courthouse stands on ‘the site of four previous:
courthouses. The first building on the site was a two-storey brick struc--
ture started late in 1859. Although near completion, work on the building
was stopped during the Civil War. The Federal forces tore it down, loaded
the bricks on transports -and shipped them up the White River to De Valls Bluff
to use in Federal fortifications there. The second courthouse on the Square
was a ‘two-room frame building completed in the spring of 1866 to be used only
until a more suitable structure could be erected. In 1872 a two-storey brick
courthouse was constructed but burned to the ground on January 1, 1895. The
citizens of Monroe County, in a mass meeting, decided to build a courthouse
for the county and on: January 9, 1895, received permission from the county
court to do so. This structure was completed by June 3, 1895, at no cost to
the county, but was torn down to make room for the present courthouse.

The present Monroe County Courthouse was erected in 1911. Architect Charles
L. Thompson of Little Rock designed the plans for .the building in 1910. The
contract was let on January 25, 1911, to W. A. Prather and Company of Memphis,
Tennessee for $118,000.
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During the 1927 flood which destroyed much of the town, water was up to
eighteen feet deep in some areas of Clarendon. Boats were rowed through:-
the halls of the courthouse and hundred of persons sought refuge on the
upper floors, awaiting rescue. Church services and other community acti=-
vities were held in the courthouse while flood damage to the remainder of
the town was being repaired.

Architecturally as well as historically significant, the Monroe County
Courthouse is a large two-storey brick structure. Designed by prominent
architect Charles L. Thompson, the structure is rectangular in plan with
a symmetrical appearance. Four octagonal-shaped towers mark the corners
of the building. The center of the facade is distinguished by a large
tower topped by a belfry.

The interior of the Monroe County Courthouse is exceptionally noteworthy.
The richness of marble and ceramic tile abounds. The second floor court-
room features a brilliantly colored dome skylite.

The Monroe County Courthouse is a significant historical structure both
architecturally and as the center of politics and government in the county.
Resting on its original site on the courthouse square, the Monroe County
Courthouse is a historic landmark in Arkansas.
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Lyle, Mrs. Bateman (President, Monroe County Historical Society). Personal
interview, April 21, 1976, Clarendon, Arkansas.

Monroe County Sun, February 17, 1911.

Roberts, Mrs. John (Monroe County Circuit Clerk). Personal interview, April
21, 1976, Clarendon, Arkansas.
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